THE PUTNAM COUNTY LEGISLATURE 40 Gleneida Avenue Carmel, New York 10512 (845) 808-1020 Fax (845) 808-1933

Amy E. Sayegh *Chairwoman* Greg E. Ellner *Deputy Chair* Diane Schonfeld *Clerk*



Nancy Montgomery	Dist. 1
William Gouldman	Dist. 2
Toni E. Addonizio	Dist. 3
Laura E. Russo	Dist. 4
Greg E. Ellner	Dist. 5
Paul E. Jonke	Dist. 6
Daniel G. Birmingham	Dist. 7
Amy E. Sayegh	Dist. 8
Erin L. Crowley	Dist. 9

AGENDA PROTECTIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING HELD IN ROOM 318 PUTNAM COUNTY OFFICE BUILDING CARMEL, NEW YORK 10512 Members: Chairman Jonke & Legislators Addonizio & Birmingham

Tuesday

July 8, 2025

(To Immediately Follow the 5:30pm Personnel Meeting)

- 1. Pledge of Allegiance
- 2. Roll Call
- 3. Acceptance/ Protective Services Meeting Minutes/ May 13, 2025
- 4. Approval/ Budgetary Amendment 25A060/ Sheriff's Office/ Grant Award through NYS FY22 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Funding from the Division of Criminal Justice Services through the Bureau of Justice Assistance/ Sheriff Kevin McConville
- 5. FYI/ Sheriff's Office/ In accordance to Governor Hochul's Mandate The Updated Putnam County Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plan/ Undersheriff Thomas Lindert and Commissioner Servadio
- 6. Other Business
- 7. Adjournment

July Protective

PROTECTIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING HELD IN ROOM #318 **PUTNAM COUNTY OFFICE BUILDING** CARMEL, NEW YORK 10512 Members: Chairman Jonke & Legislators Addonizio & Birmingham

Tuesday

May 13, 2025

(Immediately Followed 6:00pm Personnel Meeting)

The meeting was called to order at 6:24pm by Chairman Jonke who requested Legislator Addonizio lead in the Pledge of Allegiance. Upon roll call Legislator Addonizio and Chairman Jonke were present. Legislator Birmingham was absent. Chairman Jonke appointed Legislator Ellner to sit as a member of the Committee in Legislator Birmingham's absence.

Item #3 - Acceptance/ Protective Services Meeting Minutes/ March 11, 2025

Chairman Jonke stated the minutes were accepted as submitted.

Item #4 – Approval/Budgetary Amendment 25T104/ Request to Hire Meridian Strategic Services to Develop a Continuity of Operations Plan for Putnam County/ Commissioner **BES Robert Lipton**

Commissioner of the Bureau of Emergency Services Robert Lipton stated he is requesting to hire Meridian Strategic Services to develop their continuity of operations plan. He stated this is a company they have previously hired to assist the County. He explained they were a tremendous help in managing the process for the County to receive the FEMA reimbursements. He stated they have completed all of the Putnam County projects and currently this company is helping them seek more reimbursements for the federal highways. He stated for the continuity of operations plan the company is going to create a plan for the county and each individual department. He stated this plan will consist of how a department will continue to operate when the top leadership is not present.

Chairman Jonke questioned if Commissioner Robert Lipton has a proposal from Meridian Strategic Services since they are requesting \$25,000 to fund this.

Commissioner Robert Lipton stated they do have a quote, and he believes the proposal was sent to the Legislature. He stated the proposal may not have been forwarded properly.

Chairman Jonke made a motion to table the proposal to next month until the plan is received.

Legislator Montgomery questioned if towns and villages will be involved in the plan.

Commissioner Robert Lipton stated they hired the company specifically for the County therefore they will only develop a county plan.

Chairman Jonke expressed his unease in the County having to spend \$25,000 to create this type of a plan.

Commissioner Robert Lipton stated the company is not going to develop a plan solely for the County, but they are also going to develop a plan for each individual department within the County.

Chairman Jonke made a motion to Table the proposal to next month until the plan is received; Seconded by Legislator Ellner. All in favor.

Item #5 – Approval/ Intermunicipal Agreement Between the County of Westchester and the County of Putnam for Use of the Putnam Radio System/ Commissioner BES Robert Lipton

Chairman Jonke made a motion to Waive the Rules and Accept the Revised Additional for agenda Item #5; Seconded by Legislator Addonizio. All in favor.

Chairman Jonke questioned if this was reviewed by the Law Department.

Commissioner Robert Lipton stated yes, Senior County Attorney Anna Diaz from the Putnam County Law Department has reviewed and approved it.

Chairman Jonke requested Commissioner Robert Lipton to clarify the purpose of the agreement.

Commissioner Robert Lipton stated the agreement allows both Westchester and Putnam County to use each other's radio frequencies. He stated this also allows the Westchester and Putnam County Fire Departments to utilize each other's radio frequencies.

Chairman Jonke requested confirmation there is no cost to this agreement.

Commissioner Robert Lipton stated that is correct.

Chairman Jonke made a motion to approve the Intermunicipal Agreement Between the County of Westchester and the County of Putnam for Use of the Putnam Radio System; Seconded by Legislator Addonizio. All in favor.

Item #6 – Approval/ Re- Appointments to the Putnam County Emergency Services Safety Advisory Board: Nat Prentice as Community Representative and Catherine Lewis as EMS Council Representative/ County Executive Kevin Byrne Commissioner Robert Lipton stated both Nat Prentice and Catherine Lewis already belong to the Emergency Services Safety Advisory Board (ESSAB). He stated the terms for a ESSAB member is 3-years both Nat Prentice and Catherine Lewis are up for re-appointment. He stated the candidates must first be approved by the County Executive Office and then approved by the Legislator.

Chairman Jonke questioned if the Chair of Protective Service serves on this board.

Commissioner Robert Lipton stated that is only for the Fire Advisory Board.

Chairman Jonke stated he recalls attending many ESSAB meetings.

Commissioner Robert Lipton stated that ESSAB is composed of one representative from the Police Department, two representatives from the Fire Department, one member of the general public, and two representatives from EMS.

Legislator Montgomery expressed her agreement with Chairman Jonke's idea of having a Legislative representative on the ESSAB.

Chairman Jonke agreed with Legislator Montgomery. He stated he believed it was a custom for the Chair of the Protective Services Committee to be invited to attend or included in the ESSAB meetings.

Chairman Jonke made a motion to Approve the Re-appointments to the Putnam County Emergency Services Safety Advisory Board: Nat Prentice as Community Representative and Catherine Lewis as EMS Council Representative; Seconded by Legislator Addonizio. All in Favor.

Item #7 – FYI/ SFY2025 Next Generation 911 (NG911) Grant/ Commissioner BES Robert Lipton

Commissioner Robert Lipton stated this is a new grant from the Governor. He stated this grant will help them obtain 911 Next Generation equipment. He explained how this grant is perfectly timed since they have to upgrade their Vesta phone system and the 911 System. He stated the grant will help pay for this phone system.

Legislator Addonizio stated there are no matching funds required for this grant.

Commissioner Robert Lipton stated that is correct.

Legislator Addonizio stated she is glad the grant is distributed non-competitively. She stated her satisfaction with the grant.

Item #8 – Discussion/ Sheriff's Office/ Procurement of Equipment/ Sheriff Kevin McConville

Sheriff Kevin McConville requested to enter into an executive session due to the sensitive nature of the procurement and the discussion that needed to occur.

Chairman Jonke agreed with Sheriff McConville that due to the nature of the procurement this discussion should occur during Executive Session.

At 6:39pm Chairman Jonke made a motion to go into Executive Session to discuss the procurement of equipment; Seconded by Legislator Ellner. All in favor

At 7:18pm Chairman Jonke made a motion to come out of Executive Session; Seconded by Legislator Addonizio and Legislator Ellner. All in favor.

Chairman Jonke stated there was no action taken in the Executive Session.

Item #9a – Other Business/ Verbal Update/ Community Engagement & Police Advisory Board (CEPAB)/ CEPAB Co-Chair Ron Ried

Co-Chair of CEPAB Ron Reid introduced Pat Glover, CEPAB treasurer. He thanked the Legislature for their continued support and encouragement over the years. He stated on April 26th of 2025 they came together to raise awareness and support diverse individuals. He stated the Legislators present made a powerful statement and the members of CEPAB are grateful for this. He stated the proceeds from this event will go towards the future development of a sensory playground. He explained this playground will be a safe and inclusive space designed for children of all abilities. He thanked Scott Rhodes, Co-founder of CEPAB, for proposing this idea 4 years ago. He stated Co-founder of CEPAB, Scott Rhodes, has been a passionate advocate and a driving force behind this initiative. He also thanked DSS Commissioner Sara Servadio, Coordinator of the Office for Individuals with Disabilities Dana Touponse, Sheriff Kevin McConville and staff, and the CEPAB Board of Directors for all of their support. He thanked Brewster High School's special education program for their incredible turnout. He stated in February they also hosted a Black History Month event with the Putnam County Historian Jenniffer Cassidy as well as an emerging documentary filmmaker John Scott Bennett. He stated the program followed the story of Putnam County resident, Private Frank Myers, and the life and legacy of Paul Robeson. He stated this was centered on the historical context of the Peekskill riots. He stated CEPAB has more events planned for this year. He thanked the Legislature again for their support and partnership.

Chairman Jonke thanked Co-Chair of CEPAB Ron Reid. He stated he was lucky his schedule permitted him to attend the Autism Awareness Walk. He expressed his support for CEPAB and the great job they are doing.

Legislator Addonizio stated she was also in attendance at the Autism Awareness Walk. She stated that despite the unfavorable weather conditions there was still a large turnout. She thanked Co-Chair of CEPAB Ron Reid for his hard work.

Item #10 – Adjournment

There being no further business at 7:24pm, Chairman Jonke made a motion to adjourn; Seconded by Legislator Addonizio and Legislator Ellner. All in favor.

Respectfully submitted by PILOT Intern Aubrey Dall.

THE PUTNAM COUNTY LEGISLATURE 40 Gleneida Avenue Carmel, New York 10512 (845) 808-1020 Fax (845) 808-1933

Amy E. Sayegh *Chairwoman* Greg E. Ellner *Deputy Chair* Diane Schonfeld *Clerk*



Nancy Montgomery	Dist. 1
William Gouldman	Dist. 2
Toni E. Addonizio	Dist. 3
Laura E. Russo	Dist. 4
Greg E. Ellner	Dist. 5
Paul E. Jonke	Dist. 6
Daniel G. Birmingham	Dist. 7
Amy E. Sayegh	Dist. 8
Erin L. Crowley	Dist. 9

May 13, 2025

AGENDA – REVISED w/ Other Business PROTECTIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING HELD IN ROOM 318 PUTNAM COUNTY OFFICE BUILDING CARMEL, NEW YORK 10512

Members: Chairman Jonke & Legislators Addonizio & Birmingham

Tuesday

(Immediately Following the Personnel Meeting)

- 1. Pledge of Allegiance
- 2. Roll Call
- 3. Acceptance/ Protective Services Meeting Minutes/ March 11, 2025
- 4. Approval/ Budgetary Amendment 25T104/ Request to Hire Meridian Strategic Services to Develop a Continuity of Operations Plan for Putnam County/ Commissioner BES Robert Lipton
- 5. Approval/ Intermunicipal Agreement Between The County of Westchester and the County of Putnam For Use of the Putnam Radio System/ Commissioner BES Robert Lipton
- 6. Approval/ Re- Appointments to the Putnam County Emergency Services Safety Advisory Board: Nat Prentice as Community Representative and Catherine Lewis as EMS Council Representative/ County Executive Kevin Byrne
- 7. FYI/ SFY2025 Next Generation 911 (NG911) Grant/ Commissioner BES Robert Lipton
- 8. Discussion/ Sheriff's Office/ Procurement of Equipment/ Sheriff Kevin McConville
- 9. Other Business
 - a. Verbal Update/ CEPAB Co-Chair Ron Reid
- 10. Adjournment

200 F 1-8-2E



MICHAEL LEWIS Commissioner Of Finance

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

June 30, 2025

Ms. Diane Schonfeld, Clerk Putnam County Legislature 40 Gleneida Avenue Carmel, NY 10512

Dear Ms. Schonfeld

Pursuant to Code Section 5-1, D dated February 14, 2010, I am advising you of the following request to amend the 2025 Sheriff's Department budget:

Increase Rev	venues:		
10311000	10003	Sheriff Admin – Byrne Justice Grant	
	443890	Other Public Safety	\$ 97,869.00
Increase Exp	penses:		
10311000	10003	Sheriff Admin – Byrne Justice Grant	
	52680	Other Equipment	\$ 15,650.00
	52130	Computer Equipment	56,360.00
	54710	Building Maintenance & Repair	4,560.00
	54783	Licensing	9,300.00
	52640	AV Equipment	8,500.00
	52110	Furniture	322.00
	54300	Miscellaneous Supplies	3,177.00
			\$ 97,869.00

2025 Fiscal Impact - 0 2026 Fiscal Impact - 0

The Putnam County Sheriff's Office is the recipient of a grant award through the NYS FY22 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program Application. This funding, provided by the Division of Criminal Justice Services (DCJS) with federal funds through the Bureau of Justice Assistance, is to be used to purchase various law enforcement equipment. The federal award lapse date is 9/30/26.

CFDA#16.738

25A060

AUTHORIZATION:

Date Commissioner of Finance/Designee: Initiation by \$0 - \$5,000.00

40 GLENEIDA AVENUE ~ CARMEL, NEW YORK 10512 ~ Tel (845) 808 - 1075 ~ Fax (845) 808 - 1919

an year	
CAR	Connecto Con
ASS.	N
	1000 A
ZZA	ç,
	5

SHEILA BARRETT First Deputy Commissioner of Finance

ALEXANDRA GORDON Deputy Commissioner of Finance

Date	County Executive/Designee: Authorized for Legislative Consideration \$5,000.01 - \$10,000.00
Date	Chairperson Audit/Designee: \$0 - \$10,000.00
Date	Audit & Administration Committee: \$10,000.01 - \$25,000.00



KATHY HOCHUL Governor

ROSSANA ROSADO Commissioner

CILLIAN FLAVIN Deputy Commissioner

Grant Award Notice

Crantes/Ossila				
Grantee/Contractor: Putnam County / Putnam County Sheriff's Off	Date: ice 6/4/2025			
Program Name:	Award Amount:			
Law Enforcement Equipment	\$97,869 ¹			
Signatory Name and Title:	Term Dates:			
Kevin McConville, Sheriff	TBD			
Email: kevin.mcconville@putnamcountyny.gov	Contract Number: C633241			
Program Description: To support the purchase of car computers and docks, soundproofing, livescar technology upgrades.	n accessories, breaching equipment, and			
The following additional information is provided as federal funding:	required when grants are supported with			
Federal Award Identification Information				
Award Name: New York State FY 2022 Edward E (JAG) Program Application Federal Award Number: 15PBJA-22-GG-00624- Name of the Federal Award Agency: Bureau of Federal Award Lapse Date: 9/30/2026 Total Amount of Federal Award: \$9,231,239.00 Federal Fiscal Year of Funds: FFY 22 Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFD/ Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program	JAGX Justice Assistance (BJA) A) Title and Number: 16.738 Edward Byrne			
Grant Que	stions			
Primary Contact Secondary Contact Katie Wagner, Public Safety Grants Representative Meagan Armstrong, Public Safety Grants NYS Division of Criminal Justice Services Representative Office of Program Development and Funding NYS Division of Criminal Justice Services Email: kathryn.wagner@dcjs.ny.gov Office of Program Development and Funding Phone: 518.457.2683 Phone: 518.485.5569 Email: kathryn.wagner@dcjs.ny.gov Email: meagan.armstrong@dcjs.ny.gov				
This funding is provided by the Division of Criminal Justice Services (D Assistance. Grantees receiving these funds will be subject to federal r Thank you for all the work you do. We look forward to w	CJS) with federal funds through the Bureau of Justice ules, regulations, and reporting requirements.			
safeguard the health and safety of all New York resident	s and visitors.			

Thomas Lindert

From:Johnathon CihanekSent:Wednesday, June 18, 2025 2:54 PMTo:Thomas LindertSubject:NYS FY 2022 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant

52680- Other Equipment-\$15,650 / The Saint Breaching tool

52130- Computer Equipment \$56,359.5 15 Latitude 5430 Intel i7 1185G7 and Vehicle Dock

54710- Building Maintenance and Repairs \$4,559.68 BCI Interview Room Sound Proofing

54783- Licensing and Accessories \$9,300 LiveScan Annual Maintenance and Subscription Fee

52140- Audio Visual Equipment \$8,498.12 52110- Lectern \$321.86 Upgrade Training Room

Miscellaneous supplies -\$3,180.02 54300

-F/Sgt. Cihanek

Johnathon Cihanek

First Sergeant I Putnam County Sheriff's Department 3 County Center Carmel, NY 10512 (845)-225-4300 x 42228 Cell- (845)260-0485 Johnathon.Cihanek@putnamcountyny.gov





Prices Are Valid Until: 07/0

07/06/25 Quo

Quote No.: 1119587136 Reference No.: R201202-OMNIA

Sold To: Travis Bjorkander Putnam County Sheriff'S Dept 3 County Center Attn: Accounts Payable CARMEL, NY 10512

Bill Phone: (845)225-5255

06/06	725 A5326284 N/A WB	MULTIP	and the second	
ine Qty No Orc	Item Description	SKU# MFR#	Item Price	Amount
1 1	EPSON POWERLITE L730U 7000L WUXGA LSR PRJCTR/REG Country of Origin: PHILIPPINES	EPL730U (V11HA25020)	3,488.40	3,488.4
	In Stock - while supplies last.			
2 1	KANTO UNIVERSAL PROJECTOR MOUNT - WHITE/REG Country of Origin: CHINA	KAP101W (P101W)	59.99	59.9
	In Stock - while supplies last.			•
3 1	JBL WALL CONTROLLER w/VOL CONTROL (US) WHT/REG Country of Origin: CHINA	JBCSRVWHT (CSR-V-WHT)	68.52	68. 5
	In Stock - while supplies last.			
4 1	JBL VMA 1240 - 5CH IP/1CH 240W OP MXR/AMP/REG Country of Origin: CHINA	JBVMA1240 (VMA1240)	456.80	456.8
			t,	
	Community And The Community No. 1919			



none

800-947-8003 212-239-7503

Government, Education, and Corporate Department For Pricing Requests, Purchase Orders, and Customer Service:

Education: emailbids@bhphoto.com Corporate: corporatesales@bhphoto.com State and Local: biddept@bhphoto.com

The Professional's Source

= 420 Ninth Avenue, New York City, NY 10001 • www.bhphotovideo.com =

		A5326284 N/A Sism	MULTIPL		
Line No	Qty Ord	Item Description	SKU# MFR#	Item Price	Amount
		Instant Savings 200.00 \$200.00 Instant Savings Exp. 08/21/25			
		This item currently has a price of \$499.00 while supplies last. In Stock - while supplies last.			
5	3	JBL CONTROL 26C w/TRANSFORMER (PAIR)/REG Country of Origin: CHINA	JBC26CT (CONTROL 26CT)	336.92	1,010.76
		Temporarily Out of Stock. More on the Way			
6	1	KRAMER 3.5m M TO 3.5mm M AUDIO PLNM CABLE-50'/REG Country of Origin: CHINA	KRA35MM50 (CP-A35M/A35M-50)	13.61	13.61
		In Stock - while supplies last.			
7	1	SESCOM 3.5mm STEREO to DUAL 1/4"PHONE(MONO)50/REG Country of Origin: UNITED STATES	SESIQTRM50 (SES-IPOD-QTRM60)	49.29	49.29
		Special Order. 7-14 Business Days			
8	1	LOGITECH 4K AIO MEETUP CONFERNCCAM w/120DEG FOV/REG Country of Origin: TAIWAN	LOMUCC120 (960-001101)	558.80	558.80
		In Stock - while supplies last.			
		· .			
				d	
		Continued on developed age.			



The Professional's Source

— 420 Ninth Avenue, New York City, NY 10001 • www.bhphotovideo.com =

la yr e Sacar y		A5326284	N/A Slsm		MULTIPL	E	
Line No	Qty Ord		Item Description		SKU# MFR#	Item Price	Amount
9	1		JACK -MONO/WHT/GRY/REG	.•	RDDCIJ3 (D-CIJ3)	81.00	81.0
		In Stock - while suppl	ies last.			-	
10	. 1		UNT GANG BOX (WHITE)/REG : UNITED STATES	·	FSSMWB2GWHT (SMWB-2G-WHT)	61.56	61.5
		In Stock - while suppl	ies last.				
11	1	BELDEN 3612 MLT-CONDCT Country of Origin	R CAT6 CBL/1K' BLUE/BOX/REG : MEXICO		BE3612A1KBL (3612-A1000-BL)	346.68	346.68
		In Stock - while suppli	es last.				
12	1		CONNECTOR / 100pc / JAR/REG : UNITED STATES	·	PL202010J (202010J)	49.86	49.86
		In Stock - while suppli	es last.				
13	1		JRE COPPER SPK CBL/250'/REG UNITED STATES		MA162250W (16/2 250W)	81.00	81.00
		In Stock - while suppli	es last.		•		
		• •					
			a commellors				<u> </u>



Government, Education, and Corporate Department

For Pricing Requests, Purchase Orders, and Customer Service:

Education: emailbids@bhphoto.com

800-947-8003 212-239-7503

Fed Gov: federalsales@bhphoto.com Corporate: corporatesales@bhphoto.com State and Local: biddept@bhphoto.com

The Professional's Source

1

= 420 Ninth Avenue, New York City, NY 10001 • www.bhphotovideo.com =

14 1 SESCOM 3.5mm STERED to DUAL RCA/M(MONO) 3'CBL/REG Country of Origin: UNITED STATES SESIQRCA03 (SES-POD-RCA03) 22 15 1 Ntock - while supplies last. 0WCBLTB4C2M (OWCCBLTB4C2M) 48 15 1 OWC THUNDERBOLT 4 USB-C CABLE/6.5' BLACK/REG Country of Origin: CHINA 0WCBLTB4C2M (OWCCBLTB4C2.0M) 48 16 3 KRAMER DUAL USB-A WALL PLATE INSERT (GRAY)/REG Country of Origin: ISRAEL KRWU2AAG (OWCCBLTB4C2.0M) 33 17 1 KANEXPRO HDM/USB-C EXTENDR WALL PLATE KIT/230'/REG Country of Origin: CHINA KAWPEHDTC70 (OW-EXTHOTC70) 524.			MULTIPL	Sism	A5326284 N/A	4 161 St. 5 5	
14 1 SESCOM 3.5mm STEREO to DUAL RCA/M(MONO) 3'CBL/REG Country of Origin: UNITED STATES SESIORCA03 (SES-IPOD-RCA03) 22 15 1 OWC THUNDERBOLT 4 USB-C CABLE/6.5' BLACK/REG Country of Origin: CHINA OWCBLTB4C2.0M) 48 16 3 KRAMER DUAL USB-A WALL PLATE INSERT (GRAY)/REG Country of Origin: ISRAEL KRWU2AAG (WU-2AAG)) 33 17 1 KANEXPRO HDMI/USB-C EXTENDR WALL PLATE KIT/230'/REG Country of Origin: CHINA KAWPEHDTC70 (WP-EXTHOTC70) 524. 18 1 FSR DECORA WALL PLATE 2-GANG - WHITE/REG Country of Origin: UNITED STATES FSSSDPLT2W (SS-DPLT2:WHT) 7.	e Amount	Item Price				Qty Ord	.ine No
15 1 OWC THUNDERBOLT 4 USB-C CABLE/6.5' BLACK/REG Country of Origin: CHINA OWCBLTB4C2M (OWCCBLTB4C2.0M) 48 16 3 KRAMER DUAL USB-A WALL PLATE INSERT (GRAY)/REG Country of Origin: ISRAEL KRWU2AAG (WU-2AA(G)) 33 16 3 KRAMER DUAL USB-A WALL PLATE INSERT (GRAY)/REG Country of Origin: ISRAEL KRWU2AAG (WU-2AA(G)) 33 17 1 KANEXPRO HDMI/USB-C EXTENDR WALL PLATE KIT/230'/REG Country of Origin: CHINA KAWPEHDTC70 (WP-EXTHDTC70) 524. 18 1 FSR DECORA WALL PLATE 2-GANG - WHITE/REG Country of Origin: UNITED STATES FSSSDPLT2W (S8-DPLT2-WHT) 7.		22.57	SESIQRCA03 (SES-IPOD-RCA03)	CBL/REG		1.	.14
Country of Origin: CHINA Country of Origin: CHINA In Stock - while supplies last. In Stock - while supplies last. 16 3 KRAMER DUAL USB-A WALL PLATE INSERT (GRAY)/REG Country of Origin: ISRAEL. KRWU2AAG (WU-2AA(G)) 33 17 1 KANEXPRO HDMI/USB-C EXTENDR WALL PLATE KIT/230'/REG Country of Origin: CHINA KAWPEHDTC70 (WP-EXTHOTC70) 524. 18 1 FSR DECORA WALL-PLATE 2-GANG - WHITE/REG Country of Origin: UNITED STATES FSSSDPLT2W (SS-DPLT2-WHT) 7.		-		а С. 1. с.	In Stock - while supplies last.		
163KRAMER DUAL USB-A WALL PLATE INSERT (GRAY)/REG Country of Origin: ISRAELKRWU2AAG (WU-2AA(G))33171KANEXPRO HDMI/USB-C EXTENDR WALL PLATE KIT/230'/REG Country of Origin: CHINAKAWPEHDTC70 (WP-EXTHDTC70)524:181FSR DECORA WALL PLATE 2-GANG - WHITE/REG Country of Origin: UNITED STATESFSSSDPLT2W (SS-0PLT2-WHT)7.	22 48.2	48.22		EG		. 1 -	15
Country of Origin: ISRAEL (WU-ZAA(G)) Special Order. 2-4 Weeks KAWPEHDTC70 17 1 KANEXPRO HDMI/USB-C EXTENDR WALL PLATE KIT/230'/REG Country of Origin: CHINA KAWPEHDTC70 18 1 FSR DECORA WALL PLATE 2-GANG - WHITE/REG Country of Origin: UNITED STATES FSSSDPLT2W (SS-DPLT2-WHT)		•		•	In Stock - while supplies last.		
17 1 Special Order. 2-4 Weeks KAWPEHDTC70 Country of Origin: CHINA Special Order. 7-14 Business Days 18 1 FSR DECORA WALL PLATE 2-GANG - WHITE/REG Country of Origin: UNITED STATES FSSSDPLT2W (SS-DPLT2-WHT) 7.	99.0	33.00)/REG		3	16
Country of Origin: CHINA (WP-EXTHDIC 70) Special Order. 7-14 Business Days (WP-EXTHDIC 70) 18 1 FSR DECORA WALL PLATE 2-GANG - WHITE/REG Country of Origin: UNITED STATES FSSSDPLT2W (SS-DPLT2-WHT) 7.							
18 1 FSR DECORA WALL PLATE 2-GANG - WHITE/REG Country of Origin: UNITED STATES FSSSDPLT2W (SS-DPLT2-WHT) 7.	96 524.9	524.96		1/230'/REG		1	17
Country of Origin: UNITED STATES (SS-DPLT2-WHT)					Special Order. 7-14 Business Days		
In Stock - while supplies last.	6 7.46	7.46				1	8
					In Stock - while supplies last.		
		· · ·					



onor

Government, Education, and Corporate Department

For Pricing Requests, Purchase Orders, and Customer Service:

800-947-8003 (* 800-858-5517 212-239-7503 212-239-7759

B-5517 Education: emailbids@bhphoto.com Corporate: corporatesales@bhphoto.

Education: emailbids@bhphoto.com Fed Gov: federalsales@bhphoto.com Corporate: corporatesales@bhphoto.com State and Local: biddept@bhphoto.com

The Professional's Source

420 Ninth Avenue, New York City, NY 10001 • www.bhphotovideo.com

		A5326284	N/A	Sism	然時 市時	MULTIPL	E E	
Line No	Qty Ord	lte	m Description		- 	SKU# MFR#	Item Price	Amount
19	1	DALITE/ELECT COSMOPOL/E 113 Country of Origin: UNIT		/HT/ L/REG		DA34460L (34460L)	1,163.64	1,163.64
		This is A Special Order Item, An	d is Not Returnabl	e.				
		Back-Ordered - Special Ord	ler. 07/03/25					
					•			
		PLEASE NOTE: **** Please reference	your quote num	ber on all PO's ****				
		**** ALL PRICES ARE LIS						
	.		•		•.			
				·				
				· · · ·				
								•
A STATE AND					- 	C-1 T		9 102 12
Pa ¥M	ment	Type -				- Amount Sub-T	Utat:	8,192.12
						Shippi B	ng:	306.00
						Total:		8.498.12

Men	U
-----	---

Busy Unlock Savings with FREE Shipping! >

Eans 3% Back & Save on Plus >

WebstaurantStore > Business Type > Office Froducts > Office Furniture > Podiums and Lecterns > Oklahoma Sound 22/12-8K Black Finish Combo Tabletop Lectern and Lectern Base

Oklahoma Sound 22/112-BK Black Finish Combo Tabletop Lectern and Lectern Base Item #: 38622112BK MFR #: 22/112-BK

Leave a review Ask a question



\$321.86/Each

Discounted shipping with

Contact us or login for pricing

Call 717-392-7472 Mon - Fri BAM - BPM EST

Why do we do this?

1

Add to Cart

Earn up to \$9.66 back (966 points) with a <u>Weipsteur ant Researds Vina²¹ Cradit Card</u>

Add to Wish List

Usually Ships in 1-2 Business Days from manufacturer Lead times very based on manufacturer stock @

. . . Product Overview

- Large reading surface with convenient book stop
- Durable thermofused laminate provides sturdy base for AV equipment.
- Black finish gives a simple, professional appearance
- Includes four easy-roll casters (two locking) for efficient transport
- Sturdy construction makes the included shelves perfect for storage

UPC Code:

604747953799



Oklahoma Sound 22/112-BK Details

A staple for any presentation or conference, this Oklahoma Sound 22/112-BK black finish combo tabletop lectern and lectern base will prove a versatile tool at any function. This item has both a lectern base / AV cart and a tabletop lectern allowing you to use the items together or alone. Used alone, the lectern base provides a sturdy stand for AV equipment like projectors or laptops and the tabletop lectern provides ample space for presentation materials like books and papers. Together, these items create a mobile, full lectern that can be used in classrooms, offices, and conferences.

The 19 1/2" x 14 1/2" shelf located inside the base provides a great storage area and gives you a place to keep larger presentation materials during events. Plus, the shelf is also ideal for storing smaller AV equipment for future use once your event is over. The tabletop lectern also includes a shelf which gives you space to store items like books or extra papers for your presentation and this prevents the surface from getting cluttered during your event. With a built-in paper / book stop, the tabletop piece will help keep all of your presentation materials nearby, organized, and ready to go.

In addition, the lectern base comes with four easy-roll wheels, allowing you to efficiently transport equipment from one location to another. Two of the wheels can be locked, making it easy to secure the base in one place during a presentation. Made of durable thermofused laminate, this combo lectern is designed to hold heavier books and materials while adding to a room's style. This lectern's sleek, black finish with charcoal trim brings a simple, professional style to presentations and events. Its scratch-resistant surface is designed to withstand heavy use and transport without damage. This item ships ready to assemble with hardware included and all that is needed is a #2 Phillips head screwdriver and a hammer (sold separately). A simple yet versatile piece, this lectern is

ideal for hotels, businesses, classrooms, and conference centers. Whether you use its parts on their own or as a full-sized podium, this lectern is a perfect fit for your next event.

Overall Dimensions:

Width: 23 3/4" Depth: 19 7/8" Height: 47 1/2"

Tabletop Dimensions:

Width: 23 3/4" Depth: 19 7/8" Height: 13 3/4"

Base Dimensions:

Width: 21 1/8" Length: 17 1/2" Height: 33 3/4"

This Item Ships via Common Carrier. For more information and tips to help your delivery go smoothly, click here.

Because this item is not stocked in our warehouse, processing, transit times and stock availability will vary. If you need your items by a certain date, please contact us prior to placing your order. Expedited shipping availability may vary. We cannot guarantee that this item can be cancelled off of the order or returned once it is placed.

Oklahoma Sound 22/112-BK Specs	
Quantity	1/Each
Shipping Weight	81 lb.
Width	23 3/4 Inches
Depth	19 7/8 Inches
Height	47 1/2 inches
Casters	With Cesters
Color	Biack
Features	. With Sound
Məteriai	Laminate
Туре	Tabletop Lecterns

Questions & Answers

Looking For Specific Info?	
• ·	
Get quick answers to product questions with our Al-powered search.	
/ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
C Ask about this product	Ask
	in and in a second s
	<i>(</i>

Resources and Downloads for Oklahoma Sound 22/112-BK



PRICE QUOTATION (USD)

Off The X® Our Experience-Your Future

Quote To

Date: November 13, 2024 QUOTATION # USD-000406-01

604 TROPHY CV

Contact OFFICER JOHN CIHANEK CHRISTOPHER ANDREW BRKICH, PHD MBA NY PUTNAM COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE OFF THE X INC. (USA) **3 COUNTY CENTER** CARMEL HAMLET, NY 10512 STATESBORO, GA 30461-4495 845-225-4300 352-283-3929 // 587-855-2073

Shipping Method	Shipping Terms	Payment Terms	Stock Delivery
FEDEX INTERNATIONAL GROUND	DDPOTX INTERNATIONAL	NET 30 OF DELIVERY	EST. 8-10 BUS, DAYS

Line Item	P/N	Description	Qty	Unit Price	Line Total
1	OTX-ST-NEW	THE SAINT® BREACHING TOOL PACKLIST INCLUDED BELOW 1 BREACHING TOOL 2 RECHARGEABLE LITHIUM-ION BATTERIES 1 BATTERY CHARGER 1 REMOTE CONTROL 1 REMOTE CONTROL 1 REPLACEMENT JAW/TEETH SET 1 JAW/TEETH SET CHANGE TOOL 1 CHANGE TOOL POUCH 2 REPLACEMENT GUIDE RODS 2 BLADE COVERS 1 TRANSPORTATION AND STORAGE CASE 1 OPERATION AND SAFETY MANUAL HS TARIFF CODE: 84/57 29,00,90 ORIGIN CRITERION: B // CERTIFICATION: D QUALIFICATION: TV // COO: CANADA INCLUDES ALL SHIPPING/HANDLING/CUSTOMS	1	15,650.00	15,650.00
TO BE BROK 6433-5411-	ERED USING FEDE 0) UNDER CONTIN	X TRADE NETWORKS (CLIENT NO. 005633295; FTN A UOUS BOND #19C001HUK IF REQ'D.	CCT NO.		
		GA SALES & USE TAX NO. 309-368794		Subtotal Sales Tax 8.0%	15,650.00 EXEMPT
				Total	15,650.00

Please retain this quotation and any accompanying documentation 1. for your records.

- Payment terms are Net 30 of delivery unless otherwise specified. 2. Amounts due 30 days past delivery confirmation will accrue 1.0% interest per month.
- 3. Remit all payments to: OFF THE X INC. Accounts Receivable 604 Trophy Cv Statesboro, GA 30461-4495

OR BY ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER (DIRECT DEPOSIT) 061000227 Routina Account 2006397158

Send all correspondence to: 4.

> Christopher Andrew Brkich Phone 587-855-2073 Fax 587-415-5900 Email ACCOUNTING@OFFTHEX.CA

THIS PRICE QUOTATION IS FOR ONE (1) BRAND-NEW UNIT OF THE SAINT®. IT IS BASED ON STANDARD LIST PRICING AND IS VALID THROUGH 31 DECEMBER 2024 FOR ALL LOCATIONS IN THE CONTINENTAL UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

DUNS UNIQUE ENTITY ID #111654632 SAM UNIQUE ENTITY ID #NR5CT7BF9AU3 CAGE/NCAGE NUMBER #911W8 // #LOPQ9 FEDERAL EIN #30-1180995

PLEASE FORWARD ALL PURCHASE ORDERS AND/OR FINANCIAL PAPERWORK TO ACCOUNTING@OFFTHEX.CA.

CHRISTOPHER ANDREW BRKICH, PHD MBA 2024-11-13

Authorized by

Date

Off The X Inc. ACCOUNTING@OFFTHEX.CA

HaWorks Plus

A Leader In Criminal Justice & Law Enforcement Technology

October 30, 2024

Sgt. Travis Bjorkander Putnam County Sheriffs Office 3 County Center Carmel, NY 10512 (845)490-9182 TRAVIS.BJORKANDER@PUTNAMCOUNTYNY.GOV

RE: Livescan and Mugshot System Annual Subscription and Maintenance Pricing

Dear Sgt. Bjorkander,

DataWorks Plus is providing this quotation for a RICI Plus Livescan and Mugshot system

728 North Pleasanthury Drive

Greenville, SC 29607

Dieltal Instice Soluti

Upgrade for the sheriff's office and Jail.

Maintenance	laintenance and Subscription Services						
NYS OGS #	Migration, Maintenance, and Subscription Fee Year 1	Qty	Price	Total			
· · · ·	New York RICI/CAPS Data Migration (one-time fee) – migration of Data to new RICI Cloud System per Livescan	3	\$ 2500	Paid			
	Annual Maintenance On-site Advantage Solution, 9X5, Next day on-site response and parts replacement including Idemia TP-5300A-ED Palmprint Scanners	3	\$ 3,100	\$ 9,300			
<u></u>	TOTAL:			\$ 9,300			
	Maintenance and Subscription Options Year 2-5:						
	Annual Maintenance <u>On-site</u> Advantage Solution; 9X5, Next day on-site response and parts replacement for new Idemia TP-5300A-ED Palmprint Scanners	3	\$ 3,100	\$ 9,300			
	TOTAL:		·	\$ 9,300			

TERMS:

- Price does not include local, county, state or federal taxes, if applicable.
- Dataworks will do its best to integrate older customer provided Epson Cardscan, Idemia TP-XX00 Livescans, Canon Cameras, and Lexmark Printers but cannot guarantee this integration on this old equipment.
- Prices quoted are valid for a period of ninety (90) days from the date of this price quote.
- Net 30 Payment Terms.

Please issue a Purchase Order to:

Dataworks Plus, LLC 728 North Pleasantburg Drive Greenville, SC 29607

04354-PR Project N Putnam C	Number: P-Option 1 ame: ounty Sheriff's Office- ef #: 04354	Phase 3	New York So	OUNDPROOFING	john	i.alfano@put (845) 8 3 Couni	y Sheriff's Off namcountyny 08-4313 ty Center NY 10512
F	Representative Ricardo Martinez		Description Nolse Leakage	Payment 1 Propos	· · · · · · ·		ation Date 24/2025
item #	Supply and inst	tall acoustic wall	Descrip panels in Polyg	ntion Iraph Room (with w	vindow)		ltem Total
1	Quantity 3.00 2.00	Product(s) 4'x5' 42'x5'	1	Fabric Type / Color Matte White Matte White	Thickness 1 inch 1 inch	Edge Beveled Beveled	\$ 1,255.00
-		all custom acous ph Room (with w		nstalled with hand	les and latches	over	
2	1.00 wood f	Product(s) Custom Item m-Size Panel (With 3/4' rame, w/latches and ha stripping on back of par x 58"	* white andles, Matte V	Fabric Type / Color	Thickness	Edge Niteration and Beautiful	\$ 559.68
2	1,00 Custor 1.00 wood f weather	Custom Item m-Size Panel (With 3/4' rame, w/latches and ha stripping on back of par x 58"	F " white andles, Matte V nel): 36"	то точно на колони и само на села и таки е не не	3 inch	Beveled	\$ 559.68
3	1,00 Custor 1.00 wood f weather Supply and insta	Custom Item m-Size Panel (With 3/4' rame, w/latches and ha stripping on back of par x 58"	F "white andles, mel): 36" Matte V eve the drop ceili F on to be	Mhite Sides Pained White ing in Polygraph R abric Type / Color	3 inch	Beveled	\$ 559.68 \$ 799.00
	1.00 Custor 1.00 wood f weather Supply and insta Quantity 1.00 Custor I ins	Custom Item m-Size Panel (With 3/4' rame, w/latches and ha stripping on back of par x 58" all insulation abo Product(s) tem (Rockwool insulatio stalled over drop ceiling	F white andles, Matte V we the drop ceili we the drop ceili F on to be) ag door treatment	Mhite Sides Pained White ing in Polygraph R abric Type / Color	3 inch oom (with wind	Beveled	

5	Quantity	Product(s)		Fabric Type / Color	Thickness	Edge	\$ 599.00
	the state of the second	an a	1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.	and a second	a general second second	Alexandra and	
	1.00	Custom Item					



we solve IT

SALES QUOTE

Account Executives			And and a state of the second s
	Timothy Vanasse	# 25660	0402.03
Fax:	(603) 683-1204	PLEASE REFER	
Email:	tim.vanasse@connection.com	Date: Valid Through: Account #:	10/29/2024 11/28/2024
Notification and a second s	a entre frankensk server ander frankensk frankensk frankensk en en ander ander ander som en en server som som e	¹⁵⁵ (* 55.47) PART DATES OF STREET MARKET ALS SHEET AND A DESCRIPTION OF STREET, STREET AND A DESCRIPTION OF STREET, STRE	
		Phone: (845) 225-4300 x4	12209
Email:	william.rossiter@putnamcountyny.g	Fax: (845) 225-1421	
	SHIP TO:		
1			
		. •	
1	•		
1			
	(845) 225-4300 x42209		
	Phone: Fax: Email: Customer Contact: Email:	Phone: (800) 800-0019 ext. 33011 Fax: (603) 683-1204 Email: tim.vanasse@connection.com Customer Contact: William Rossiter Email: william.rossiter@putnamcountyny.g SHIP TO: AB#: 23400033	Phone: (800) 800-0019 ext. 33011 PLEASE REFER Fax: (603) 683-1204 QUOTE # WHE Email: tim.vanasse@connection.com Date: Valid Through: Account #: Customer Contact: William Rossiter Phone: (845) 225-4300 x4 Email: william.rossiter@putnamcountyny.g Fax: (845) 225-4300 x4 SHIP TO: AB#: 23400033 Putnam County Sheriffs Dept William Rossiter Yilliam Rossiter Gunty Ctr Carmel, NY 10512 US

DELIVERY	FOB	SHIP VIA	SHIP WEIGHT	TERMS	CONTRACT ID#		
5-30 Days A/R/O	Destination	Small Pkg Ground Service Level	201.00 lbs	Net 30	NCPA 01-144		
Important Notice:							

NCPA 01-144. Any Order accepted by GovConnection for the items included in this Quotation is expressly limited to those Terms and Conditions; any other terms and conditions referenced or appearing in your Purchase Order are considered null and vold. No other terms and conditions shall apply without the written consent of GovConnection, Inc. Please refer to our Quote Number in your order.

*	Line #	Qty	ltem #	Mfg. Part #	Description	Mfg.	Price	Ext
	1	18	34719603	7160-0882-00	Vehicle Dock for Latitude Rugged 14, No RF		\$ 526.30	
	2	7	41853093			Dell Direct CTO/Systems	\$ 3,231.00	\$ 22,617.00

Subtotal	\$ 32,090.40
Fee	\$ 0.00
Shipping and Handling	\$ 0.00
Tax	Exempti
Total	\$ 32,090,40

15 48,465 16 - 51,696 15 7894.5 16 - 8,4298 56,359.3 - 60,116.8

KEVIN BYRNE County Executive

SARA SERVADIO Commissioner

NICOLLE MCGUIRE Deputy Commissioner





FY7 #5

* *

DEPARTMENTS OF MENTAL HEALTH SOCIAL SERVICES AND YOUTH BUREAU

MEMORANDUM

To:	Paul Jonke, Chairman, Protective Services		3
From:	Sara Servadio, Commissioner Thomas Lindert, Undersheriff	ARMEL	United
Re:	July Protective Committee	NY	PM 2
Date:	July 1, 2025	~ .	23

The NYS Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management, through Governor Hochul's leadership, mandated an update to the Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plan for each county. The DHSES Office of Counter Terrorism issued guidance intended to help our jurisdiction build upon the Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plan Sheriff McConville submitted to the Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Services' Domestic Terrorism Prevention Unit last year. The updated Putnam County plan was submitted by the June 1, 2025, deadline.

The Putnam County Sheriff's Office and the Department of Mental Health respectfully requests the opportunity to discuss the updated plan.

The guidance package is attached. Limited confidential copies of the updated Putnam County Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plan will be provided to the members of the Protective Committee.

Thank you.



Office of Counter Terrorism

Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plan Guidance



May 2024

Educate, Disrupt, Mitigate.

Foreword: A Letter from the Office of Counter Terrorism Director

This guidance is intended to help your jurisdiction build upon the Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plan it submitted to the Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Services' Domestic Terrorism Prevention Unit (DTPU) last year.

The following pages are a culmination of the latest research, expert insights, practical experience, *and ideas that you and your colleagues have brought forward*, which should serve as a roadmap for augmenting and refining the Plans that were previously submitted.

Behavioral Threat Assessment and Management (TAM) is foundational to nearly all those Plans. We continue to emphasize the importance of developing and maturing effective TAM teams tailored to your specific jurisdiction to disrupt acts of mass violence *before* they occur. The DTPU has worked throughout New York State to assist Jurisdictions with operationalizing these teams, and to provide resources, guidance, and training when invited to do so. We look forward to continuing these important partnerships going forward.

The safety and security of individuals and communities are paramount. Accordingly, the importance of proactive and evidence-based approaches to preventing targeted violence cannot be overstated. Our objective must be continuous improvement and we therefore ask all Jurisdictions to embrace ongoing self-assessment and planning refinement. We encourage you to use this as an opportunity for reevaluation and to adapt your prevention strategies to changing circumstances, emerging threats, and new research. These Plans, and the process of working as a team to develop them, help equip Jurisdictions with the knowledge and tools required to avoid, disrupt, and – if necessary – recover from an act of mass violence. They are another step towards developing comprehensive strategies to counter the complex and multifaceted challenges posed by perpetrators of targeted violence and domestic terrorism.

We are committed to working collectively towards safer communities and a more secure New York and we look forward to receiving your updated Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plan by June 01, 2025.

Sincerely,

Ben Voce-Gardner

Director, Office of Counter Terrorism

Contents

Foreword: A Letter from the Office of Counter Terrorism Director		2
Introduction		4
Background		6
Connection between Targeted Violence and Terrorism	6	
General Considerations and Planning Guidelines		8
This Guidance	8	
Working Sessions	8	
Submission Deadline and Format	8	
Other considerations	8	
Assessing your progress	9	
Overview		10
Jurisdictional Overview	10	
Review Intelligence and Information Sharing Networks	11	
Educate		12
Examine Public Outreach and Education Efforts	12	
Participate in and Promote Training	13	
Disrupt		15
Establish, Organize, and Maintain your TAM Team	15	
Consider how to facilitate Bystander Reporting	16	
Mitigate		18
Identify Potential Targets, Assess Vulnerabilities, and Engage in Target Hardening		
Develop Active Shooter/Active Assailant Plans		
Engage in School Safety Planning		
Lessons Learned from the 2022 buffalo mass shooting Response effort	20	
Conclusion		23
APPENDIX A – Key Contacts	24	
APPENDIX B – Plan Development	25	
APPENDIX C – Trainings		

Introduction

Following the May 14, 2022, domestic terror attack inspired by white supremacist ideology at the Tops Friendly Markets grocery store in the East Side Neighborhood of Buffalo, NY, Governor Hochul issued Executive Order No. 18, "Preventing and Responding to Domestic Terrorism" (EO 18). EO 18 created the <u>Domestic Terrorism</u> <u>Prevention Unit (DTPU)</u>, a new unit within the Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Services' (DHSES) Office of Counter Terrorism (OCT) dedicated to preventing domestic terrorism and targeted violence.

Pursuant to EO 18, each New York State County, and the City of New York (referred to as jurisdictions throughout this document), must develop and maintain a Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plan (DTPP or Plan) to identify and confront threats of domestic terrorism. Jurisdictions were highly encouraged to use multidisciplinary behavioral Threat Assessment and Management (TAM) teams as a component of their DTPP. The evolving threat environment and increasing frequency of targeted violence requires a shift in prevention strategy, with renewed emphasis on holistic prevention efforts that include using both public health and public safety-based interventions, as appropriate. This requires purposely engaging a broad and diverse set of stakeholders to ensure the safety and well-being of New York State.

Each jurisdiction submitted a DTPP for 2022, and the DTPU closely reviewed each Plan. Based upon these submissions, the DTPU released a document titled *Best Practices - New York State Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plans* in April 2023, highlighting the work of jurisdictions and the best practices they identified. This guidance document builds upon the initial DTPP submissions and that *Best Practices* document. The guidance is designed to strengthen the next cycle of DTPPs and jurisdictional approaches to preventing targeted violence, including terrorism (both foreign and domestic), hate crimes, mass killings, and other premeditated violent acts against a specific individual, group, or organization based on an ideological or grievance-based motivation.

To assist in this process, \$10 million in grant funding was provided through the Domestic Terrorism Prevention Grant Program. Jurisdictions have already utilized this funding to advance a broad range of targeted violence prevention-related activities involving planning, training, exercises, and staffing. Additional funding will be available in the upcoming Fiscal Year. Jurisdictions must submit an updated DTPP prior to June 01, 2025, to be eligible for future funding opportunities.

This guidance is intended to assist jurisdictions in updating their DTPP before the June 01, 2025, submission deadline by providing a brief background on targeted violence prevention efforts in the State, how they relate to domestic terrorism prevention, new considerations and prompts for updating the DTPP based on the 2022 initial Plan review, suggestions for how to structure DTPPs, and selected example documents such as the TAM team Primer. This guidance is structured to reflect the <u>2023 New York State Targeted Violence Prevention Strategy</u>. The DTPU will use the DTPPs to help inform future planning efforts and program offerings, as well as domestic terrorism and targeted violence prevention related grant opportunities.

DTPPs should be tailored to the respective jurisdiction and include input from a range of multidisciplinary stakeholders (law enforcement, mental and behavioral health professionals, and education officials, as well as others appropriate for the jurisdiction) and, if applicable, include the jurisdictions' multidisciplinary Threat

Assessment and Management (TAM) teams.¹ Plans must cover all areas within the geographic boundaries of a jurisdiction, and jurisdictions may choose to work together to develop regional plans.

This guidance is organized into four main sections, modeled upon the 2023 New York State Targeted Violence *Prevention Strategy*, which can also be used to structure the DTPP. Each section includes a series of questions to be addressed in each DTPP.

- **Jurisdictional Profile:** consider local threats, unique characteristics, information sharing networks, and highlight the status of your efforts.
- Educate: discuss how you are increasing community awareness about targeted violence and domestic terrorism and note trainings that you have received or intend to receive.
- **Disrupt:** include information on your TAM team and efforts to facilitate bystander reporting as a means of disrupting individuals on the Pathway to Violence.
- **Mitigate:** consider measures taken to reduce the impacts of targeted violence and domestic terrorism in your community, including target hardening, safety planning, and recovery.

Additionally, the DTPU is available to conduct voluntary Working Sessions in each jurisdiction to assist with the development of updated DTPPs. Attendees at the local level should include the TAM team lead, core members of that TAM team or Domestic Terrorism Prevention planning group, and the Domestic Terrorism Prevention Grant coordinator. Representatives of the DTPU will facilitate a collaborative discussion around each of the topics in this Plan guidance, share ideas for incorporation into your Plan, and provide a written report that captures key points from the session that can be used to update the DTPP.

The development and maintenance of DTPPs are central to the prevention of targeted violence and domestic terrorism in jurisdictions across New York State. Please direct questions regarding your DTPP to your DTPU regional representative or to <u>PreventDT@dhses.ny.gov</u>.

¹ Per E.O. 18, this guidance refers to these teams at TAM teams, recognizing that teams have different names (e.g., Threat Assessment Group, Threat Assessment Committee, Behavioral Intervention Team, Behavioral Assessment Team, Threat Assessment, Prevention, and Mitigation Group), but all share similar goals and functions.

Background

According to the US Department of Homeland Security, lone offenders and small groups motivated by a range of ideological beliefs and personal grievances pose a persistent and lethal threat to the Homeland. Domestic violent extremists (DVEs) are assessed to be the primary threat, with racially or ethnically motivated violent extremists (REMVEs) and anti-government anti-authority violent extremists (AGAAVEs) posing the greatest present threat given their lethality and frequency of attacks and plots. DVEs with hybrid ideological beliefs that do not fit into traditional categories continue to emerge, perpetuated by the online environment and conspiracy theories.

Foreign terrorist organizations – such as al-Qa'ida, the Islamic State, and their affiliates – maintain interest in conducting large scale attacks against the US; however, counter terrorism operations have degraded their capability to conduct such attacks against the US homeland. Instead, homegrown violent extremists (HVEs) inspired by, but acting independently of, foreign terrorist organizations remain the most likely international terrorism related threat to the US homeland and NYS.

Likely targets of potential violence include, but are not limited to, mass gatherings, critical infrastructure, faithbased institutions, individuals, or events associated with the LGBTQIA+ community, schools, racial and ethnic minorities, and government facilities and personnel – including law enforcement. Recent international events have had direct impacts here in New York State, including the Israel-Hamas conflict, which has led to a surge in online hate speech.

To address the growing threat of domestic terrorism and targeted violence, New York State developed the *2023 Targeted Violence Prevention Strategy*.² This Strategy, and its three core goals, informed and shaped the guidance provided below. As such, the information presented below is divided into three operational objectives:

- 1. *Educate* stakeholders and the public, and share information on preventing targeted violence and domestic terrorism;
- 2. **Disrupt** targeted violence and domestic terrorism through effective early intervention, programs, and initiatives; and
- 3. *Mitigate* the potential impacts of targeted violence and domestic terrorism to the greatest extent possible.

CONNECTION BETWEEN TARGETED VIOLENCE AND TERRORISM

The US Secret Service's (USSS) National Threat Assessment Center (NTAC) defines targeted violence as a "premeditated act of violence directed at a specific individual, group, or location, regardless of motivation and generally unrelated to other criminal activity." All terrorism is targeted violence, but not all targeted violence is terrorism. However, the efforts used to prevent domestic terrorism are also applicable to other types of targeted violence. For the purposes of this guidance, targeted violence includes all types of terrorism (both foreign and domestic), hate crimes, mass killings, and other premeditated violent acts against a specific individual, group, or organization.

The premeditated nature of targeted violence allows time for potential early intervention opportunities through behavioral threat assessment and management. Many individuals engaging in targeted violence tend to move

² Available at https://www.dhses.ny.gov/system/files/documents/2023/04/2023-nys-tvp-strategy.pdf

along an identifiable pathway before initiating an attack. This Pathway to Violence often begins with a real or perceived grievance based on ideological, personal, or other factors such as biases or conspiracy theories.³



New York State has identified a series of strategic goals and objectives designed to prevent targeted violence. These strategic goals represent a pivot from the post-9/11 mindset generally focused on international terrorism, to the exclusion of other kinds of terrorist violence. These goals embrace a broader understanding of terrorism that recognizes the diversity of threats facing New York State, including domestic terrorism, and explicitly calls for a multidisciplinary approach that invests in the social institutions required for healthy communities, as well as law enforcement.

The Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plans developed by each jurisdiction are a critical pillar of this multidisciplinary approach. Addressing targeted violence and domestic terrorism requires engaging a broad coalition of local, state, federal, and non-governmental stakeholders. Almost every jurisdiction in New York State has expressed their intention to engage these stakeholders through a multidisciplinary TAM team or similar entity. The formation of these teams, and the DTPPs submitted by each jurisdiction, represents the operationalization and implementation of the *2023 Targeted Violence Prevention Strategy*.

³ US Department of Homeland Security (DHS), National Threat Evaluation and Reporting Office, Threat Evaluation and Reporting Course (TERC) Training Suite

General Considerations and Planning Guidelines

THIS GUIDANCE

The guidance below is intended to provide a framework for organizing your DTPP and includes essential considerations for preventing domestic terrorism and targeted violence at the jurisdictional level. The questions throughout this guidance should be addressed in your updated DTPP. This guidance is not exhaustive and will not capture every targeted violence and domestic terrorism prevention activity that may occur in your jurisdiction. We recognize that some counties may be in more advanced stages of development of their targeted violence and domestic terrorism prevention guidance as a baseline, work to exceed it, and best reflect your jurisdiction's unique efforts to prevent domestic terrorism and targeted violence.

WORKING SESSIONS

The Domestic Terrorism Prevention Unit (DTPU) will be available to conduct Working Sessions in each Jurisdiction. Like the County Emergency Preparedness Assessment (CEPA) model developed by DHSES, inperson Working Sessions are designed to support jurisdictions in the development of their DTPPs. Attendees at the local level should include the TAM team lead, core members of that TAM team (or equivalent entity), and the Domestic Terrorism Prevention Grant Coordinator. In many jurisdictions, one individual may fill multiple roles; however, input from additional stakeholders, such as those identified as serving on TAM teams and those listed as key stakeholders in the *Best Practices* document, is critical to effective targeted violence and domestic terrorism prevention. Leaders from TAM teams on college campuses should also be involved in this planning process to ensure the coordination of efforts within your Jurisdiction. Members of the Domestic Terrorism Prevention Unit will provide guidance for gathering information in advance of the Working Sessions, facilitate discussion, and provide a written report that captures key points from the session that can be used to update the DTPP. Regional representatives from the DTPU will be reaching out to schedule a Working Session in each jurisdiction.

SUBMISSION DEADLINE AND FORMAT

Updated Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plans are due by **June 01, 2025**. Plans should be submitted via <u>password protected PDF</u> or a <u>password protected Word document</u> to <u>PreventDT@dhses.ny.gov</u>. Passwords to unlock these files should be sent in a separate e-mail. Should there be issues submitting the Plan, please contact <u>PreventDT@dhses.ny.gov</u> or any member of the Domestic Terrorism Prevention Unit for assistance.

Subsequent Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plans will be submitted on a three-year schedule. On years in which an updated Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plan is not submitted, jurisdictions will be required to respond to a survey to update contacts, document trainings, and update activities.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

Submitted Plans should have a cover page identifying the jurisdiction and date of submission. Plans should also include a *Table of Contents* identifying sections of the Plan and any appended or annexed information. These Plans will be a reference point for three years and should reflect the professionalism and care required to effectively prevent targeted violence and domestic terrorism.

Submissions are required to identify a designated point of contact. Appendix A provides a template that can be used for your Plan to identify this point of contact as well as suggested information on all Plan authors and working group contributors for administrative and record keeping purposes.

Disclosing the elements of these Plans can undermine their usefulness in preventing domestic terrorism and, thereby, endanger public safety. These Plans may contain assessments of the current threat environments, examinations of the processes that go into creating those threat assessments, sources of information for those threat assessments, examinations of processes used to identify or report threats, details of preparedness training, plans for responding to specific types of threats, identifications of potential targets, descriptions of preventative measures currently in effect or planned for future implementation, and resources that can be used to support preparedness.

ASSESSING YOUR PROGRESS

Please provide a summary of the progress you have made towards implementing the operational components of your jurisdiction's first Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plan that was submitted December 31, 2022. Also, please explain how you have used the Domestic Terrorism Prevention Grant funding to help develop or operationalize your Plan. You can include this as part of the introduction, conclusion, your jurisdictional overview, or as an appendix to your Plan.

Please address the following questions regarding progress since the last DTPP submission:

- What steps have you taken to implement the previous iteration of your DTPP?
- What gaps have you identified in your efforts? What steps have you taken, or will you take, to address those gaps?
- How did your jurisdiction/will your jurisdiction use the Domestic Terrorism Prevention Grant funding?
- Is your jurisdiction leveraging any other sources of grant funding for domestic terrorism and targeted violence prevention purposes? If yes, please highlight the sources.
- Please describe any success stories related to your TAM team, the development of your DTPP, and the implementation of related plans and programs that you would like to share.

Overview

JURISDICTIONAL OVERVIEW

Recognizing the threat landscape across the US and NYS is extremely diverse, we recommend using the sources below to provide an overview of your jurisdiction, in addition to assessing and evaluating your threat environment. A broad range of accessible data sources can be utilized to strengthen awareness of the threat landscape within jurisdictions (e.g. County Emergency Preparedness Assessment (CEPA), Census Data, CDC/ATDSR Social Vulnerability Index, Uniform Crime Data, NYS DCJS Hate Crime Report). Consider integrating credible publications and intelligence products as well as engaging with stakeholders – including regional Crime Analysis Centers, the New York State Intelligence Center (NYSIC), and the DHSES' Office of Counter Terrorism (OCT) Domestic Terrorism Prevention Unit (DTPU) – to determine the potential threats facing your jurisdiction. Jurisdictions are expected to conduct a comprehensive review of previous incidents and arrests connected to acts of targeted violence – including terrorism, mass shootings, and hate crimes – or acts adjacent to, or indicative of, a potential future act of targeted violence. For example, domestic violence, stalking, and animal torture have been associated with individuals committing acts of targeted violence, so observed increases in reports of these crimes could be leading indicators of concern from a community-wide perspective. **Please address the following questions regarding your jurisdiction:**

- What do you assess as the domestic terrorism and targeted violence threats of highest concern in your jurisdiction and what are the specific risks associated with the threats?
- What organizations, groups, locations, and/or types of individuals may be potential targets of domestic terrorism and targeted violence? This may include both generalized communities or locations and specific locations or events of significance. One source of data may be to examine historical DHSES OCT Red Team data to see what types of potential targets were exercised.⁴ Other examples include:
 - Communities of interest (e.g., religious communities, LGBTQIA+ communities, migrants)
 - Cultural relevance/symbolism (e.g., landmarks, events, museums, community centers, places of public gathering)
 - Critical Infrastructure (mass transit, electrical grid, government/military facilities, hospitals/medical centers, other facilities relied upon by the community)
 - Educational institutions (schools, colleges, universities)
- What organizations, groups, and/or lone offenders pose a threat within your jurisdiction and how have you determined the threat? (e.g., racially motivated violent extremists, anti-government/militia violent extremists, anarchist violent extremists, homegrown violent extremists inspired by foreign terrorist organizations)
- What special circumstances are present in your jurisdiction that influence your threat landscape?
 - Mass gatherings, seasonal events, seasonal population changes (e.g., colleges/universities, tourism, agriculture)
- What concerns have community members expressed within your jurisdiction related to targeted violence and domestic terrorism?
 - Community members provide essential insights on jurisdictional threat environments. Focus groups and/or community forums to collect structured feedback on the threat landscape allows for two-way

⁴ The inclusion of specific potential targets, especially those based upon previous cases, and use of Red Team data should be considered sensitive information used "For Official Use Only." If this sensitive information is included, the document should not be posted for public release.

communication between those responsible for threat response and community members. Jurisdictions have collected stakeholder feedback through structured surveys, which may reach groups less likely to participate in an in-person forum. Consider using methods such as focus groups and surveys to inform threat assessment and management efforts.

REVIEW INTELLIGENCE AND INFORMATION SHARING NETWORKS

Integration with, and engagement of, formal information sharing networks helps to ensure relevant parties within the jurisdiction can receive and share pertinent domestic terrorism and targeted violence prevention information. Effective information sharing within the jurisdiction, as well as with TAM teams and prevention practitioners, are essential to combatting targeted violence and domestic terrorism. These intelligence and information sharing network engagements may include, but should not be limited to:

- An established relationship with the New York State Intelligence Center (NYSIC)
- An established relationship with the regional New York State Police (NYSP) Troop
- An established relationship with local Crime Analysis Centers (CACs)
- Active participation in the regional Counter Terrorism Zone (CTZ) meetings
- A relationship with the FBI and Joint Terrorism Task Force (JTTF)
- Participation in the Intelligence Liaison Officer (ILO), Field Intelligence Officer (FIO), and Jail Intelligence Officer (JIO) programs
- Other dedicated information sharing networks or taskforces at the local level

In addition to sharing intelligence and information with law enforcement agencies, jurisdictions must have a process to share and receive relevant information with non-law enforcement agencies (e.g., schools, mental and behavioral health, social services, probation) and with other TAM teams across the state or within their jurisdiction.

Please address the following questions regarding your Intelligence and Information Sharing Network using the examples above as a guide:

- What intelligence and information sharing networks exist to inform your jurisdiction's stakeholders?
 o How does your jurisdiction leverage these formal intelligence sharing networks?
- What formal information sharing agreements (e.g., MOUs) exist for sharing information outside of traditional law enforcement and intelligence partners? This could be both between multidisciplinary stakeholders on your TAM team or with external partners, such as with higher education institutions.
- Have you used, or do you intend to use, any sources of grant funding to support intelligence and information sharing networks? If yes, please describe.
- If you have specific contacts for, or on, your TAM team from the information sharing networks above, consider adding them to the supplemental table of key contacts found in Appendix A.

Educate

Educating stakeholders and sharing information on indicators of targeted violence and domestic terrorism is a central pillar of primary prevention activities intended for the general population. These activities may include education and outreach campaigns for a range of audiences, programs for community wellness and social cohesion, and partnerships with both new and existing stakeholders.

EXAMINE PUBLIC OUTREACH AND EDUCATION EFFORTS

Outreach is a critical component of domestic terrorism and targeted violence prevention. The public and specific community stakeholders should be informed about ongoing targeted violence and domestic terrorism prevention efforts and what observable concerning behaviors are important to report to TAM teams or law enforcement. Activities to promote domestic terrorism and targeted violence prevention, awareness of mobilization indicators, and proper suspicious activity reporting (SAR) tools made available to the public are an important part of targeted violence prevention. Related targeted outreach and education efforts, such as information literacy efforts to educate the public on how to spot misinformation, disinformation, and malinformation including online conspiracies tied to violent extremism should strongly be considered.

Law enforcement within the jurisdiction should actively participate in DHSES' Red Team program and other programs to promote the "See Something, Say Something" campaign. Social media is another tool that should be considered to help promote public outreach and education in addition to traditional media outreach pathways (e.g., radio, broadcast television, cable and satellite, print, and billboards).

Please address the following questions regarding your public outreach and education efforts:

- What mechanisms has your jurisdiction used to promote public outreach and education related to domestic terrorism and targeted violence prevention?
 - How has your jurisdiction identified and engaged with key stakeholders that may be more likely to experience targeted violence?
 - How has your jurisdiction increased awareness of risk factors, warning behaviors, and mobilization indicators?
 - o How has your jurisdiction reduced barriers to bystander reporting?
 - How does your jurisdiction educate the community about bystander reporting?
- What specific channels has your jurisdiction utilized to connect with the public?
 - What, if any, public awareness campaigns are your jurisdiction planning to use on social media and traditional media?
 - o What type of trainings or town hall events has your jurisdiction hosted for the public?
 - Please include examples of the materials you have used to support these outreach efforts (e.g., fliers, advertisements, etc.)
- In what other established education and awareness programs does your jurisdiction actively participate?
- Does your jurisdiction actively participate in, and facilitate, pre-established outreach and awareness campaigns? For example:
 - Operation Safeguard outreach outreach directly to businesses and critical infrastructure operators that may be a target of, or exploited by, terrorists
 - Red Team program contribute personnel to Red Team or Safety Teams
• Have you used, or do you intend to use, any sources of grant funding to support public outreach and education efforts? If yes, please describe.

PARTICIPATE IN AND PROMOTE TRAINING

A wide variety of training programs to prevent and mitigate the threat of domestic terrorism and other forms of targeted violence are available to jurisdictions through a range of providers including federal and state government agencies. This training includes, but is not limited to, training on domestic terrorism and targeted violence prevention awareness, threat assessment and management training for TAM team members and other professionals, HIPAA/FERPA training, and others. Attending, promoting, and offering trainings relevant to the targeted violence and domestic terrorism prevention mission are a vital piece of educating and informing stakeholders.

DTPU staff have completed the National Threat Evaluation and Reporting (NTER) Office's Master Trainer Program which certified the instruction of Behavioral Threat Assessment and Management (BTAM) techniques and best practices. Master Trainers are available to teach the <u>Threat Evaluation and Reporting Course (TERC)</u> training suite to all jurisdictions by request. The training suite includes three-hour, one-day, and three-day offerings for a range of stakeholders involved in the prevention of targeted violence, as well as a short virtual offering. Please contact your DTPU regional representative, or email <u>PreventDT@dhses.ny.gov</u>, for further information on how to schedule a TERC delivery.

Please address the following questions regarding your participation in, and promotion of, training:

- What major trainings has your TAM team received? What level of training?
 - For example, how many members of your team have received the <u>Threat Evaluation and</u> <u>Reporting Course (TERC)</u> and at which level? (TERO three-hour awareness level; B-TERC oneday basic course; TERC three-day full training designed for TAM core members)
- Are any members of your TAM or other targeted violence prevention practitioners in your jurisdiction certified <u>Master Trainers</u> through NTER?
- Identify which other trainings have been the most useful in support of your targeted violence and domestic terrorism prevention efforts.
- What specialized trainings have members of your TAM team or other targeted violence and domestic terrorism prevention practitioners within your Jurisdiction received, or are scheduled to receive?
 - Examples: Awareness for working with those with autism, special needs, or other disabilities; mental health first response, social media analysis, threat assessment in an educational setting.
- Are any of your members participating in, or accredited by, recognized behavioral threat assessment organizations such as the Association of Threat Assessment Professionals (ATAP) or National Association for Behavioral Intervention and Threat Assessment (NABITA)?
 - Do you have plans to ensure one of your members is participating in, or accredited by, recognized behavioral threat assessment organizations? Alternatively, have you considered using grant funding to ensure access to an accredited threat assessment professional?
- Have you used, or do you intend to use, any sources of grant funding to participate in, or promote, training? If yes, please describe.

Please use the tables in Appendix C to document trainings delivered and received.

- Please summarize trainings you and your targeted violence and domestic terrorism prevention team, including your TAM team, have **received**, the objective of these trainings, and your assessment of the value and impact of these trainings.
- Please summarize trainings you and your stakeholders have **delivered** within your jurisdiction, the objective of these trainings, and your assessment of them.

Disrupt

The 2023 New York State Targeted Violence Prevention Strategy uses a public health informed approach for early prevention. Through this approach, concerning behaviors are proactively identified and assessed with the goal of moving an individual down, or off, the Pathway to Violence, thereby helping that individual and preventing acts of targeted violence. Should an individual continue down the Pathway to Violence, traditional law enforcement investigations and disruption, including arrest, remain an option.

ESTABLISH, ORGANIZE, AND MAINTAIN YOUR TAM TEAM

Behavioral Threat Assessment and Management (TAM) teams are multidisciplinary teams that help identify, investigate, assess, and mitigate potential threats, to include threats of domestic terrorism and/or other acts of targeted violence. These teams work collaboratively to share information and better understand relevant risk factors, identify resources available to assist individuals displaying concerning behavior, and mitigate potential threats. The creation of a TAM team is strongly recommended as a best practice and central component of your jurisdiction's disruption strategy for your Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plan.

DHSES provides resources, including grant funding, training, and technical assistance to support the creation and operation of TAM teams. These resources and technical assistance include two additional documents to support standing up, and maintaining, your TAM team: The *TAM Team Primer* and the previously mentioned *Best Practices – New York State Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plans* (released April 2023).

Universities within your Jurisdiction may have TAM teams (or similarly named entities, such as Behavioral Intervention Teams) already in place. Coordination with these higher education institutions is strongly recommended as part of the development of Jurisdiction-level TAM teams.

Please address the following questions regarding your TAM team:

TAM Team Structure:

- Explain the overall structure and governance of your TAM team.
- Who are the designated co-leads or lead of your TAM team? Please include contact information for these
 individual(s) and any secondary contacts established for coverage and to minimize disruptions during
 staff turnover.
- Does your TAM team use a tiered membership structure? (e.g., core members, affiliate members, ad hoc members) If so, what are the roles, responsibilities, and expectations of members in different tiers within your TAM team?
- How does your TAM team onboard new members?
- How does your county-led TAM team connect and coordinate with K-12 and Higher Education TAM teams?
- Does your Jurisdiction have an imminent risk committee (or similarly named entity)?
- Have you used, or do you intend to use, any sources of grant funding to support staffing for your TAM team structure? If yes, please describe.
- Please provide the rationale behind the structure your TAM team. This insight will provide us a better understanding of how different TAM teams work across the State.

TAM Team Information Sharing:

 How does your TAM team integrate with existing counter terrorism information sharing networks? (i.e., NYSP CTIUs/NYSIC-CTC, CTZ, FIO, ILO, JTTF/FBI)

- How does your jurisdiction facilitate information sharing between various community stakeholders and your TAM team?
- Within your TAM team, how does your jurisdiction facilitate information sharing? Does your TAM team utilize MOUs or NDAs?
- Are you aware of other TAM teams operating within your jurisdiction (for example, within K-12 or higher education settings)? If so, what procedures are in place to share information and referrals between your teams?
- What procedures exist to share information with other jurisdictions' TAM teams across NYS? Include general information sharing and ability to provide and receive referrals.

TAM Team Function & Case Management:

- How does your TAM team evaluate and adopt proposed cases and what processes and policies has your jurisdiction developed to assist?
- Does your TAM team track and store case data? If so, how? Please include any software solutions for tracking and storing case data you use. (This information helps us advise other jurisdictions on solutions that may be available).
- How often does your TAM team meet? If you have a standard date/time, it may be useful to include this
 information in your Plan.
- What mechanisms exist to refer cases out or receive referrals into your TAM team? (e.g., escalate a case to JTTF or receive a case that JTTF and NYSP have closed but might be relevant for a TAM team to manage)
- Does your TAM team use a formal evaluation tool for threat assessment and management? If yes, please
 indicate which tool or include a copy of your tool as an annex if possible.
- Does your TAM team include anyone who has formal credentialing or professional experience in behavioral threat assessment and management?
- Have you used, or do you intend to use, any sources of grant funding to support TAM team function and case management? If yes, please describe.

CONSIDER HOW TO FACILITATE BYSTANDER REPORTING

The ability to receive information about specific threats or concerns is critical. Bystander reporting continues to be one of the most significant opportunities for preventing targeted violence. A bystander is anyone positioned to observe warning behaviors displayed by a person who may be considering an act of targeted violence. TAM teams provide another avenue for bystanders to report concerning behaviors to trusted figures within their respective communities when they may not feel comfortable with other traditional reporting mechanisms. By providing additional reporting mechanisms for bystanders to seek assistance, we hope to remove or lower barriers to reporting and increase overall bystander reporting.

Your jurisdiction's DTPP should consider the process by which reports could be received and relayed to a TAM team, or other entity, for action. This process may include member organizations or agencies making referrals and the use of 911, 988, 211, or other hotlines. Educational institutions and K-12 schools should consider a process for elevating threats and/or other concerning behavior to the TAM team. Your jurisdiction should also consider outreach to large employers to ensure they are aware of how to engage the services provided by the TAM team. As the jurisdiction develops these reporting mechanisms, special consideration should be given not only to how this information is first collected, but how to expedite the information sharing directly to the TAM.

team or other appropriate entity (e.g., law enforcement, NYSIC, JTTF) for action. Further consideration should be given to how social media platforms and other online communication platforms are conduits for "leakage" and indicators of radicalization, and how the jurisdiction can use that information to identify and address threats.

Please address the following questions regarding your facilitation of bystander reporting:

- How do you plan to facilitate bystanders reporting to your TAM team? Have you created, or plan to create, a way for the public to directly contact your TAM team (e.g., use 911 as a screening mechanism, specific phone number, e-mail, website, app)?
- What other channels has your jurisdiction considered using to receive reports of concerning behavior or suspicious activity? How do these work alongside your TAM reporting and processes?
- How are stakeholders informed of how to report information to the TAM team?
- What are your standard operating procedures for evaluating and directing reports of concerning behaviors or suspicious activity?
- Have you used, or do you intend to use, any sources of grant funding to facilitate bystander reporting? If yes, please describe.

Mitigate

A key pillar of domestic terrorism and targeted violence prevention is mitigation of its potential impacts to the highest degree possible. In concert with efforts to educate stakeholders and disrupt those on the Pathway to Violence, mitigation measures should be taken to deter, or minimize, the consequences of an attack. As the threat environment continues to rapidly evolve, mitigation measures such as target hardening, emergency planning, exercises, and relationship building will help jurisdictions evolve with it.

Mitigation also links back to education and awareness by ensuring that stakeholders, especially those more likely to be targeted by domestic terrorism and targeted violence attacks, are aware of your prevention efforts.

IDENTIFY POTENTIAL TARGETS, ASSESS VULNERABILITIES, AND ENGAGE IN TARGET HARDENING

Jurisdictions should work with local schools (K-12 and higher education institutions), religious institutions, civic organizations, courts, government buildings, mass gathering sites, community centers, hospitals, critical infrastructure, and other key locations⁵ to understand what target hardening, and other security measures, are in place. At a minimum, your jurisdiction should develop relationships and ensure open lines of communication with these entities to better understand potential vulnerabilities and encourage bystander reporting. Jurisdictions should also ensure security measures are in place for large-scale mass gathering events.

Please address the following questions regarding potential target identification, vulnerability assessments, and target hardening:

- What actions has your jurisdiction taken to support target hardening of potential targets within your area?
- Has your jurisdiction considered cybersecurity when assessing vulnerabilities and target hardening?
- Has your jurisdiction, or have any entities within your Jurisdiction, received grant funding for target hardening?
- What processes does your jurisdiction use to plan physical security for mass gatherings? Does your
 jurisdiction use a mass gathering planning tool? If so, please identify the tool and, if possible, attach that
 tool or plan as an annex to the submission of your Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plan.
- Have you used, or do you intend to use, grant funding to help identify potential targets, assess vulnerabilities, and engage in target hardening? If yes, please describe.
- Has your jurisdiction supported any organizations that have received funding from the Securing Communities Against Hate Crimes (SCAHC) Program or Nonprofit Security Grant Program (NSGP)?

DEVELOP ACTIVE SHOOTER/ACTIVE ASSAILANT PLANS

Active shooter, or active assailant type attacks, are a common tactic among domestic terrorists and other perpetrators of targeted violence. Such an event is likely to overwhelm local response capabilities in even the most well-funded and trained jurisdictions. Effective response to an active shooter event requires effective planning and role reinforcement through training for personnel caught in the event. Leaders coordinating the response must also exercise the skills to manage under the stress of such an event. As such, jurisdictions should

⁵ A key location may be anything the community relies upon. For example, the Tops Friendly Markets in East Buffalo was one of the only locations in the area where residents could buy groceries and pay bills. Accordingly, one of the ancillary effects of the Buffalo mass shooting was to close this vital community resource, which created a series of financial and subsistence issues that further traumatized the community.

review current active shooter/active assailant response plans (if applicable), update them as necessary, and exercise them on a regular basis. These plans should go beyond initial law enforcement response and should address, at a minimum:

- Agency roles and responsibilities
- Associated response actions and capabilities
- Crisis Communications
- Mass Care and Family Assistance
- Health and Medical Support (including mental and behavioral health support)
- Incident Recovery Considerations

Please address the following questions regarding your development of active shooter or active assailant plans:

- Does your jurisdiction have an active shooter and or/active assailant plan?
 - If yes, when was the plan most recently exercised and who participated?
- Please append a copy of your jurisdiction's active shooter/active assailant plan if applicable.
- Have you taken any steps to increase the linkage between these plans and your DTPP?
- If your jurisdiction does not have an active shooter and/or active assailant plan, please indicate whether you intend the develop one and document the steps that will be taken to adopt a plan.
- Have you, or do you intend to use, grant funding to develop active shooter and/or active assailant plans? If yes, please describe.

ENGAGE IN SCHOOL SAFETY PLANNING

New York State school districts are required to develop, review, and regularly update school safety plans at the district and building level. The districtwide school safety plan and building level emergency response plan are intended to define how each school district, and all the buildings in the district, will respond to acts of violence and other disasters through prevention, intervention, emergency response, and management. Law enforcement and other relevant community entities should be an active participant in the planning process.

Education Law §2801-a and State Education Commissioner's Regulation §155.17 require that each public school and BOCES develop and annually update a confidential building-level Emergency Response Plan (ERP) that includes details about how school personnel and students would respond to different types of emergency situations that may occur in their school. In addition, each public school district, BOCES, and charter school must also develop and annually update a district-wide school safety plan that provides critical information to parents, educators, and the school community about the policies and procedures that are in place related to school safety.

Please address the following questions regarding your engagement in school safety planning:

- How many entities to which §155.17 apply are in your jurisdiction?
- Have schools in your jurisdiction submitted their required school safety plans to the appropriate local law enforcement agency and New York State Police as required in §155.17?
- Please describe the school safety planning process in your jurisdiction.
- Which agencies are involved in the school safety planning process in your jurisdiction?
- Has your jurisdiction provided any support to school districts outside of emergency planning support? (e.g., training, education, outreach, etc.)

- How do school safety plans fit into your overall DTPP?
- Have you used, or do you intend to use, grant funding to engage in school safety planning? If yes, please describe.

LESSONS LEARNED FROM THE 2022 BUFFALO MASS SHOOTING RESPONSE EFFORT

The FBI defines domestic terrorism as "violent, criminal acts committed by individuals and/or groups to further ideological goals stemming from domestic influences, such as those of a political, religious, social, racial, or environmental nature."⁶ This means the act of terrorism – in other words, the act of mass violence – is not always the end goal. Rather, the damage that violence causes to the community and our system of government may be the true end goal. Accordingly, your jurisdiction's ability to rapidly respond to the social impact of an attack may determine the "success" of the terrorist attack. Therefore, as jurisdictions refine their Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plan, it is essential to address immediate, short-term, and long-term needs of the community should prevention efforts fail to stop an attack.

Below are key takeaways identified by NYS Office of Emergency Management (OEM) from the support provided to Buffalo after the Tops Friendly Markets mass shooting. As you refine your plan, these insights may assist you with developing a post-attack response strategy.

Understand Communities' Historical Background and Existing Social and Economic Concerns.

- Knowledge about existing social vulnerabilities in each community within your jurisdiction allows jurisdictions to acquire a deeper understanding of potential impacts to the community.
 - Consider expanding the traditional scope of "critical infrastructure" to include key community activity and service hubs that, if targeted, would significantly disrupt the larger community. For example, the Top Friendly Markets attacked was the only grocery store in the area, and it was where many community members went to pay bills in cash. The attack not only traumatized the community, but the closure of the Tops Friendly Markets store in this location further disrupted the community for an extended period.
 - Consider whether historically disinvested communities may have distrust in government and consider this in response planning.
- Jurisdictions should identify dependable local/community partners and foster stronger relationships with a wider group of organizations that will understand the needs of disinvested communities and assist with response.

Establish Centralized Points of Command for Immediate Response, and Short- and Long-Term Recovery.

- Establish an identified lead agency for immediate response as well as short-term and longer-term recovery.
- Ensure all response agencies and organizations understand the scope of the incident and know who is responsible for leading different lines of response efforts. This ensures response entities know *their* chain of command and effectively and efficiently begin response work.

⁶ https://www.fbi.gov/investigate/terrorism

Strengthen Communication & Understand Each Stakeholder's Role in Advance.

- Effective communication requires formalized, funded, and legitimized liaisons and communication channels directly with community organizations.
- This type of communication can avoid service duplication from multiple agencies/organizations and increase efficiency in resource distribution and response.
- Regular meetings with, and convening of, community organizations and local government organizations can help strengthen communication and develop a shared understanding of different agencies' roles for preparedness, response, and recovery. Considering achieving this through including these entities in TAM teams or trainings.

Establish Long-Term Planning and Support for Local Communities and Exercise your Plan.

- Invite appropriate organizations (governmental and non-governmental) to assist with plan development and tabletop exercises that test your plans. Consider including family assistance centers, community resource centers, direct support for victims, and support for the larger community with particular focus on vulnerable populations (e.g., elderly, school-age children, high-poverty neighborhoods, etc.), District Attorney's Offices and federal partners.
- Community organizations and leaders may provide useful guidance on how to structure a response plan, especially as it relates to trauma services and mental and behavioral health support. Community organizations generally understand community needs and have established trust and are in a strong position to "fill the gap" during critical times. They can quickly identify relevant programs/resources and mobilize rapidly to provide support. Consider how you might integrate them into your response plan.
- For financial support, consider whether funding structures can be streamlined to ensure funds that would be used for community support are readily accessible in an emergency.
- For operational support, consider how your jurisdiction will transition from immediate law enforcement response to evidence collection and victim support.
- Identify in advance agencies that will be involved in later response phases after the initial law enforcement
 response concludes and involve them in planning and training sessions. While it is important to focus on
 the immediate law enforcement response, it is also essential to consider the longer-term mental and
 behavioral health and social service needs of the larger community. Familiarize yourself with the tools
 that social services and mental and behavioral health organizations can provide.
- Be culturally aware when developing your response plan. If a racially motivated violent extremist attacks
 a community because of their race, for example, you may need to identify service providers
 representative of that community to assist with your response. This will be easier to address if you have
 familiarity with the different groups that live within your jurisdiction and have thought through where these
 resources might be found.

Please address the following questions regarding your recovery planning:

- How have you prepared to address short-term community needs, such as food, medical care, or education, especially if a key community hub, such as a grocery store, hospital, or school is targeted? (This list is not exhaustive, and we encourage you to consider other community hubs that should be considered.)
- Which governmental and non-governmental entities have you invited to assist with this phase of plan development?

- Do you plan to conduct a Tabletop exercise to test your plans, and would you consider inviting these organizations to participate? If not, what is your strategy to ensure they are integrated into your response plan?
- Which local organizations other than law enforcement and emergency management agencies are you engaging with to ensure social services are available in the aftermath of an attack? And how are you ensuring you are familiar their capabilities and resources, and how to access them?
- Persons not Injured (PNIs) can be a challenging group to identify during and after an incident, but they will be critical witnesses if and when the perpetrator is brought to justice. How will you identify witnesses or incentivize them to come forward? Have you involved you Jurisdiction's prosecutors' offices in this phase of plan development?

Conclusion

New York State has experienced tragic reminders of the importance of confronting acts of targeted violence and domestic terrorism. This work is critical; the lives of New Yorkers depend upon it. And the development and implementation of Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plans (DTPP) are central to these efforts. DTPPs memorialize efforts to tackle these threats by New York State's unique jurisdictions. They provide an overview of the threat environment across the State and detail efforts to "Educate, Disrupt, and Mitigate" targeted violence and domestic terrorism. They also offer innovative solutions and best practices that should be shared throughout the State.

Preventing targeted violence and domestic terrorism requires the support of organizations and leaders across the public, private, and non-profit sectors. That is why New York State is so committed to providing the resources, training, and technical assistance needed to address the rise in targeted violence of all kinds, including domestic terrorism.

The Domestic Terrorism Prevention Unit (DTPU) is available to your jurisdiction as a resource in developing your DTPP. An in-person working session will be offered to each jurisdiction to support the development of the updated DTPP and should consist of a range of multidisciplinary stakeholders involved in targeted violence and domestic terrorism prevention. The DTPU will facilitate a collaborative discussion around each of the topics included in this guidance, share ideas you may consider incorporating into your Plan, and provide a written report that captures key points from the session that can be used to update your Plan to have ready to submit in advance of June 01, 2025.

Thank you for the role you play in preventing targeted violence and domestic terrorism in your community. Please contact your DTPU regional representative or <u>PreventDT@dhses.ny.gov</u> with any questions about this guidance.

APPENDIX A – Key Contacts

Role	Name	Title/Rank	Agency	Email Address
Domestic Terrorism Prevention Plan Author				
Threat Assessment & Management (TAM) Team Lead (or equivalent entity)				
Domestic Terrorism Prevention Grant Program Lead				

Please also provide details for secondary contacts, other stakeholders, and/or key members of your information sharing network involved in your efforts to prevent targeted violence and domestic terrorism (use additional sheets if necessary):

Email Address		-			
Agency					
Title/Rank					
Name					
Role					

APPENDIX B - Plan Development

Number of Attendees				
Stakeholder Groups Present (e.g., Law Enforcement, Mental and Behavioral Health, Education, etc.)				
Setting (e.g., DTPU-Facilitated Working Session, TAM Team Meeting, E.M. Meeting)				
Date				

25

APPENDIX C – Trainings Trainings Delivered

Estimated Attendance					
Target Audience					
Presenting Organization(s)					
Training Date(s)					
Description					
Training Title					

26

Trainings Received

Number of Personnel Trained					
Target Audience					
Presenting Organization(s)					
Training Date(s)					
Description					
Training Title					

27